
   

 
 

    

Contact: Torin Fuller - Governance Officer 

Tel: 01246 217375 

Email: torin.fuller@ne-derbyshire.gov.uk 

Date: Tuesday, 2 December 2025 

 
To: Members of the Standards Committee 
 
Please attend a meeting of the Standards Committee to be held on Wednesday, 10 
December 2025, at 2.00pm in Executive Meeting Room at the District Council Offices, 
2013 Mill Lane, Wingerworth, Chesterfield, S42 6NG. 
 
 
Yours sincerely  
 

 
Assistant Director of Governance and Monitoring Officer  
 
 

 
Members of The Committee 

 

  
Councillor K Gillott (Chair) Councillor H Wetherall (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor P Antcliff Councillor C Cupit 
Councillor P Kerry Councillor F Petersen 
Councillor K Rouse  
  

 
Any substitutions must be notified to the Governance Manager in advance by midday the 
working day before the meeting. 
 
 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

mailto:governance@ne-derbyshire.gov.uk


 

A G E N D A 
 

1   Apologies for Absence   
 

2   Declarations of Interest   
 

 Members are requested to declare the existence and nature of any disclosable 
pecuniary interests and/or other interests, not already on their register of 
interests, in any item in the agenda and withdraw from the meeting at the 
appropriate time. 
 

3   Minutes of Last Meeting  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 

 To approve as a correct record and the Chair to sign the Minutes of the Standards 
Committee held on 1 October 2025. 
 

4   Complaints Performance and Service Improvement Report for Housing  
(Pages 7 - 26) 
 

5   Government Response to Consultation on Strengthening the Standards and 
Conduct Framework for Local Authorities in England   
 

6   Ethics and Integrity Commission   
 

7   Review of the Constitution   
 

8   Requests for Dispensations   
 

9   Work Programme  (Page 27) 
 

10   Urgent Business   
 

 To consider any other matter which the Chair is of the opinion should be 
considered as a matter of urgency.  
 

___________ 
 

Access for All statement 
 

You can request this document or information in another format such as 

large print or language or contact us by: 

 
 Phone -01246 231111 

 Email - connectne@ne-derbyshire.gov.uk 

 Text - 07800 00 24 25 

 BSL Video Call – a three way video call with us and a BSL interpreter. It is free 

to call North East Derbyshire District Council with Sign Solutions or call into the 

offices at Wingerworth.  

 Call with Relay UK via textphone or app on 0800 500 888 a free phone service  

 Visiting our offices at 2013 Mill Lane, Wingerworth, S42 6NG 

Page 2

mailto:connectne@ne-derbyshire.gov.uk
https://www.interpreterslive.co.uk/app/nederbyshire-district-council/
https://www.interpreterslive.co.uk/app/nederbyshire-district-council/
https://www.relayuk.bt.com/


 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 1 OCTOBER 2025 
 

Present: 
 

Councillor Kevin Gillott (Chair) (in the Chair) 
Councillor Helen Wetherall (Vice-Chair) 

 
Councillor Pat Kerry Councillor Fran Petersen 
Councillor Kathy Rouse  
 
Also Present: 
 
S Sternberg Assistant Director of Governance (Monitoring Officer) 
A Smith Legal Services Manager and Deputy Monitoring Officer 
A Bryan Governance Manager 
T Fuller Senior Governance Officer 
 
STA/
10/2
5-26 

Apologies for Absence 
 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 

STA/
11/2
5-26 

Declarations of Interest 
 
Councillor K Gillott declared an interest in Item 4, Complaints Performance and 
Service Improvement Report for Housing, as a Rykneld Homes Ltd Board 
Member. 
 

STA/
12/2
5-26 

Minutes of Last Meeting 
 
RESOLVED – 
 
That the minutes of the meeting of the meeting held on 2 July 2025 be approved 
as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

STA/
13/2
5-26 

Complaints Performance and Service Improvement Report for Housing 
 
The Chair announced that this item been deferred to a future meeting as the 
officer due to present the report was unable to attend.  
 

STA/
14/2
5-26 

Code of Corporate Governance 
 
The Committee considered a report which informed it of the review of the 
Council’s Code of Corporate Governance. Committee heard that the outcome of 
the review had been submitted to Audit Committee on 28 July 2025. Members 
were given the opportunity to comment and suggest changes to the Code of 
Corporate Governance for 2026.  
 
Committee discussed the report. Some Members suggested that the aim of 
ensuring openness and comprehensive engagement needed looking at as to how 
it worked in practice. In this context, some Members sought assurance as to the 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 

checks and balances in place for Cabinet as the principal decision maker. 
Committee heard of the work that goes on in the background and role of Statutory 
Officers in this respect. Some Members suggested that consistent report formats 
had helped to contribute to openness and transparency, and that the Code of 
Corporate Governance should reflect that.  
 
Committee raised further points regarding the need for greater benchmarking 
data and the possibility of including Members in the review team.  
 
RESOLVED – That: 
 
1 the review of the Code of Corporate Governance be noted. 
 
2 the comments and suggestions made be noted.  
 

STA/
15/2
5-26 

RIPA - Outcome of IPCO Inspection 
 
The Committee considered a report that outlined the changes made to the RIPA 
procedure as recommended by the Investigatory Powers Commissioners Office 
(IPCO). The report included the outcome of the IPCO’S recent inspection as well 
as details of the changes that had been made to the RIPA procedure as a result.  
 
The report stated that the IPCO inspected authorities about once every three 
years.  On this occasion, the inspection had been carried out by completion of a 
survey.  The outcome of the inspection was attached to the report at Appendix 1.  
The report set out the issues raised in the inspection outcome, which included 
regular training, and consideration of improvements to two sections in the 
Council’s Policy. Overall, the IPCO was satisfied that the Council’s responses 
provided assurance that ongoing compliance with RIPA and the Investigatory 
Powers Act 2026, would be maintained. 
 
The revised RIPA Corporate Policy and Procedure was attached to the report at 
Appendix 2. 
 
The Committee discussed the report. Some Members had questions regarding 
the mandatory training requirements across the Council. It was suggested that 
Standards Committee should take a more active role in monitoring the training 
taking place across the Council, and a report regarding statutory training for both 
Councillors and Officers be submitted to the Committee. 
 
RESOLVED – That: 
 
1 the recommendations of the inspector following the IPCO inspection be noted. 
 
2 new paragraphs 2.14.2, 2.14.3 and 2.7.8 (as outlined in the report) be added to 
the RIPA Corporate Policy and Procedure to cover the recommendations in the 
IPCO inspection letter. 
 
3 the changes to the processes and training in relation to RIPA be noted. 
 
4 the intention to check annually the compliance with the rules in relation to social 
media be noted. 

Page 4



 

 
STA/
16/2
5-26 

Review of the Constitution 
 
Committee considered a report which commenced the annual process of 
reviewing the constitution. Members were encouraged to suggest areas of the 
Constitution they felt needed a review and/or change and bring suggestions to the 
next meeting of the Standards Committee. 
 
The Committee and officers discussed the possible areas for review. It was 
suggested that in-person planning site visits, digital signatures, meeting 
substitutions and Ward Members speaking at Planning Committee should all be 
considered as part of the ongoing review of the constitution. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the areas of the Constitution identified for review be incorporated into the 
Committee’s work plan.  
 

STA/
17/2
5-26 

Request for Dispensation 
 
The Committee considered two applications for dispensations from two 
Councillors who were also Derbyshire County Council Councillors in relation to 
participation and voting on Local Government Reorganisation (LGR) where they 
had Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) as a result of also being Councillors at 
Derbyshire County Council. 
 
The report explained that the two District Councillors who were also County 
Councillors were in receipt of Member Allowances from both Councils.  As a 
result, both Councillors had a DPI in the forthcoming matter to be considered and 
without a dispensation would be required to withdraw from the Council meeting. 
 
Committee discussed the applications. It was agreed that the dispensations 
should be granted, on the grounds that granting the dispensation was in the 
interests of persons living in Derbyshire and that it was appropriate to enable all 
Councillors to participate in a matter of significant importance.  It was noted that 
Local Government Reorganisation was the biggest issue affecting the structure of 
local government in many years and the exclusion of any Elected Members would 
prevent full participation and not support good quality decision making. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
Standards Committee granted a dispensation until 31 March 2028 to Councillors 
A Dale and S Reed to enable them to participate and vote in relation to the Local 
Government Reorganisation where they would otherwise have a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest because they are Derbyshire County Council Councillors. 
 
 

STA/
18/2
5-26 

Work Programme 
 
The committee considered its work programme for the 2025/26 Municipal Year.  
 
RESOLVED  – 

Page 5



 

 
That the work programme be noted. 
 

STA/
19/2
5-26 

Urgent Business 
 
None. 
 

Page 6



North East Derbyshire District Council 
 

Standards Committee 
 

1st October 2025 
 

Complaints Performance and Service Improvement Report for Housing  
 

Report of the Portfolio Holder for Strategic Leadership and Finance 
 
Classification: This report is public  
 
Report By: Jayne Dethick – Director of Finance and Resources (Section 

151 Officer)  
 
Contact Officer:  Diane Parker – Housing Intelligence and Assurance Officer 
 
 

 
PURPOSE / SUMMARY 
 
The Social Housing (Regulation) Act 2023 placed a duty on the Housing 
Ombudsman to monitor compliance with the statutory Complaint Handling Code (the 
Code), which came into effect 1 April 2024.  
 
The purpose of this report is to note compliance with the Code’s statutory 
requirements of publishing an annual Complaints Performance and Service 
Improvement report.  
 
The report was submitted to Cabinet on the 31 July 2025 for approval and submitted 
to the Housing Ombudsman on the 11 August 2025. 
 
This report also provides a comparison with other Derbyshire Local Authorities.  
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
1. Standards Committee to note the publication of the annual Complaints 

Performance and Service Improvement Report for Housing.   
 
2. Standards Committee to note that as part of the Complaint Handling Code 

regulatory annual submissions the report has been submitted to the Housing   
Ombudsman.  

 
Approved by the Portfolio Holder – Cllr Barker, Leader of the Council and Portfolio 

Holder for Strategic Leadership and Finance 

IMPLICATIONS 
 

 

Finance and Risk:   Yes☐  No ☒  

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



Details: 
 

On Behalf of the Section 151 Officer 
 

 

 

Legal (including Data Protection):   Yes☐  No ☒  

Details: This is a statutory requirement to ensure compliance.   

 
On Behalf of the Solicitor to the Council 

 

Staffing:  Yes☐  No ☒   

Details: All functions will be carried out by existing staff. 

 
On behalf of the Head of Paid Service 

 

 

DECISION INFORMATION 
 

Page 8



Decision Information    

Is the decision a Key Decision? 

A Key Decision is an executive decision which has a 
significant impact on two or more District wards or 
which results in income or expenditure to the Council 
above the following thresholds:  
 
NEDDC:  

Revenue - £125,000 ☐  Capital - £310,000  ☐ 

☒ Please indicate which threshold applies 

No 

Is the decision subject to Call-In? 

(Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)  
 

No 
 

District Wards Significantly Affected 

 

None 
 

Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) details:  

Stage 1 screening undertaken 

 Completed EIA stage 1 to be appended if not 

required to do a stage 2 

Not Applicable 

Stage 2 full assessment undertaken 

 Completed EIA stage 2 needs to be appended 

to the report 

No, not applicable 

Consultation: 

Leader / Deputy Leader ☒   Cabinet ☒ 

SMT ☐ Relevant Service Manager ☒ 

Members ☐   Public ☐ Other ☐ 

 

Yes 
 
Details: 
 
 

 

Links to Council Plan priorities, including Climate Change, Economic and 
Health implications. 

This is a statutory function of the Housing Ombudsman, however it will enforce our 
values to be honest and accountable, treat everyone fairly and with respect and 
listen, involve and respond. 

 
REPORT DETAILS 
 
1 Background (reasons for bringing the report) 
 
1.1 The Social Housing (Regulation) Act 2023 placed a duty on the Housing 

Ombudsman to monitor compliance with the statutory Complaint Handling 
Code (the Code), which came into effect 1 April 2024.  

 

Page 9



1.2 As part of the Code’s statutory requirements, social housing providers are 
required to develop and publish an annual Complaints Performance and 
Service Improvement report for housing. 

  
1.3 The governing body’s response to the report must be published alongside the 

report which can be found on the Council’s website Council Tenants / Rykneld 

Homes - North East Derbyshire District Council .  

 
2. Details of Proposal or Information 
 
2.1 Rykneld Homes Limited (RHL), deals with tenant complaints on the Council’s 

behalf under their complaints Policy and Procedures which is in line with the 
statutory Complaints Handling Code. 

 
2.2 As landlord, the Council is ultimately responsible in terms of the regulatory 

oversight and compliance with the Code and Housing Ombudsman monitoring 
and reporting procedures.  

 
2.3 The statutory annual Complaints Performance and Service Improvement 

report has been drafted in accordance with RHL’s own complaints annual 
report provided to their Operational Board.  

 
2.4   The report enables the Council to monitor RHL’s performance and service 

improvements.  
 
2.5 Benchmarking for Context 
 
2.6 The Tenant Satisfaction Measures shows the number of complaints has 

increased during 2024/25 when compared to 2023/24.  This is to be expected 
due to the media campaign to ensure tenants are aware of the complaint 
processes.   

   

Performance Indicator 2023/24 2024/25  

CH01 
Number of: Stage 1 complaints received 
per 1,000 homes 

6.7 11.5 

CH01 
Number of: Stage 2 complaints received 
per 1,000 homes  

1.4 3.4 

 
2.7 The table below shows a comparison for stage 1 and 2 complaints for 

neighbouring Local Authorities and nationally.  North East Derbyshire District 
Council has the lowest number of stage 1 complaints and the second lowest 
stage 2, both of these are below the national average. 

 
2.8 The proportion of respondents who report making a complaint in the last 12 

months, who are satisfied with their landlord’s approach to complaints 
handling is higher at North East Derbyshire than most of the Local Authorities 
and nationally, the exceptions being Derbyshire Dales and Bassetlaw.   

 

Page 10

https://www.ne-derbyshire.gov.uk/housing-and-health/council-tenants-rykneld-homes
https://www.ne-derbyshire.gov.uk/housing-and-health/council-tenants-rykneld-homes


2.9 To provide an accurate benchmarking analysis the figures have been taken 
from the published Tenant Satisfaction Measures for each Local Authority 
area.  

 

Local Authority CH01 - Number 
of: Stage 1 
complaints 
received per 
1,000 homes 

CH01 - 
Number of: 
Stage 2 
complaints 
received per 
1,000 homes 

TP09 – 
Percentage 
Satisfied with their 
landlord’s 
approach to 
complaints 
handling 

North East 
Derbyshire 
District  

11.5 3.4 43.7% 

Chesterfield 46.2 8.9 31.2% 

Bolsover 19.0 4.0 37.8% 

Derbyshire Dales 23.3 0.0 67.0% 

Bassetlaw 36.2 6.3 46.8% 

High Peak 28.2 6.3 30.0% 

National Average 42.5 5.7 34.5% 

  
3 Reasons for Recommendation  
 
3.1  To note the Complaints Performance and Service Improvement Report for 

Housing and is compliant with the Code.    
 
3.3 To note housing complaints are open and transparent to the public in line with 

legislation.  
 
4 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not to have an annual Complaints Performance and Service Improvement 

report, this was rejected as this would not comply with legislation. 
 
 
DOCUMENT INFORMATION 
 

Appendix No 

 

Title 

A Complaints Performance and Service Improvement for Housing 
2024/25 

  

  

 

Background Papers (These are unpublished works which have been relied on to a 

material extent when preparing the report.  They must be listed in the section below.  

If the report is going to Cabinet you must provide copies of the background papers) 

 

 

 

Page 11



  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Complaint Performance and Service 

Improvement Report  

for Housing 

 

2024/2025 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 12



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

2 
 

 

 

Contents 
Introduction................................................................................................................ 3 

Difference between a Service Request and a Complaint .................................... 3 

Key Peformance Data ............................................................................................... 4 

Tenant Satisfaction Measures .................................................................................. 5 

Learning and Service Improvements ....................................................................... 6 

Equality and Diversity ............................................................................................... 7 

Internal Audit ............................................................................................................. 7 

Reporting Procedures ............................................................................................... 8 

Appendix 1 ................................................................................................................ 9 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 13



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

3 
 

Introduction 
 

From 1 April 2024, the Social Housing (Regulation) Act 2023 gave the Housing 

Ombudsman new powers and duties, including a new statutory code for handling 

complaints and a duty to monitor whether landlords comply. 

The Complaint Handling Code (‘the Code’) means that all members of the 

Housing Ombudsman Scheme are obliged by law to follow its requirements. 

The Housing Ombudsman also has a legal duty to ensure landlord complaints 

procedures and responses are compliant with the Code.  

Each year Landlords must self assess against the Code to ensure policies and 

practices comply. The latest Complaints Handling Code Self Assessment can be 

viewed on our website. 

The Council’s Housing Management Company, Rykneld Homes Limited (RHL), 

deals with tenant dissatisfactions on the Council’s behalf under their complaints  

Policy and Procedures in line with the Housing Ombudsman’s Code.  

A complaint will be raised when a customer expresses dissatisfaction with the 

response to a request for service, even if the handling of the service request 

remains ongoing. 

The Code specifies a landlord’s complaint process must be 2 stages. The landlord 

must not use any ‘informal complaint’ stages, more than 2 stages or less than 2. 

This Complaint Performance and Service Improvement Report highlights key 

performance data and service improvements related to council housing 

complaints.   

Difference between a Service Request and a Complaint 
 

RHL adopted the Housing Ombudsman’s Complaints definition as follows: 

A Service Request is defined as: 

‘A service request is a request from the resident to the landlord requiring action 

to be taken to put something right. Service requests are not complaints but must 

be recorded, monitored and reviewed regularly.’ 

A Complaint is defined as: 

“An expression of dissatisfaction, however made, about the standard of service, 

actions or lack of action by the organisation, its own staff, or those acting on its 

behalf, affecting an individual resident or group of residents.” 

 

 

 

Page 14

https://www.housing-ombudsman.org.uk/landlords-info/complaint-handling-code/
https://www.ne-derbyshire.gov.uk/housing-and-health/council-tenants-rykneld-homes
https://www.rykneldhomes.org.uk/media/iosb3t2u/complaints-policy-march-24.pdf


OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

4 
 

Key Peformance Data 
 

During 2024/25 RHL on behalf of the Council conducted a media campaign to 

ensure tenants are aware of the complaint processes. The campaign proved to 

be successful due to the increased number of complaints received for this 

reporting period.  

In 2024/25, RHL on behalf of the Council received 93 Stage 1 formal complaints, 

this is an increase of 42 (82%) from 2023/24 when 51 formal complaints were 

received.  

65 complaints were upheld and 28 not upheld. 28 complaints were escalated by the 

customer and responded to as Stage 2 complaints, of these 15 complaints were 

upheld and 13 not upheld. 

 100% of stage one complaints were responded to within regulatory target 
timescales.  

 92% of stage 2 complaints were responded to in regulatory target timescales.  

The complaints received by Service Area for 2024/25 can be seen below:   

Service Area Upheld  Not Upheld Totals 

Adaptations 1 0 1 

ASB 0 2 2 

Choice Move 0 2 2 

Customer Services 1 0 1 

Damp 12 2 14 

Electrical 1 0 1 

Gas and Plumbing 2 0 2 

Housing and Support 2 4 6 

Home 
Ownership/Leasehold 

0 2 2 

Multiple Service Areas 10 4 14 

Regeneration 7 0 7 

Rents 0 2 2 

Repairs 32 6 38 

Voids 1 0 1 

Total Complaints  69 24 93 

 

From the total number of complaints received, the following table shows the 

number of formal Stage 2 complaints by Service area: 

Page 15



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

5 
 

Stage 2 Complaints 

Service Area Upheld  Not Upheld TOTALS 

Choice Move 0 1 1 

Damp 3 1 4 

Electrical 1 0 1 

Housing and Support 0 2 2 

Home Ownership/Leasehold 0 1 1 

Multiple Service Areas 3 2 5 

Regeneration 2 0 2 

Rents 0 2 2 

Repairs 8 2 10 

Total Formal Complaints  17 11 28 

 

For a further breakdown of the complaints received, the table in Appendix 1 

shows the number of complaints by theme and Service area.  

During 2024/25, £16,096.79 has been paid in compensation during the complaints 
process and in accordance with the Compensation Policy. 

In 2024/25 four complaints were escalated to the Housing Ombudsman Service 
(HOS). Maladministration was found in one complaint, one complaint found no 
maladministration, and we are awaiting the HOS’s determination on the remaining 
two.  

 Following the maladministration outcome, the Repairs and Maintenance 
Policy was reviewed and both the application and understanding of this policy 
tested with the service area.  

Tenant Satisfaction Measures 
 

The Tenant Satisfaction Measures (TSM’s) provide tenants with greater 

transparency about their landlord's performance.There are 22 TSM’s, covering 

five themes. Ten of these are measured by landlords directly, and 12 are 

measured by landlords carrying out tenant perception surveys. RHL carry out the 

TSM’s on the Council behalf. 

The TSM’s show that the overall Satisfaction with complaints handling for 

2024/25 is 43.6%, this is a slight increase when compared to 2023/24 which was 

43.1%. 

Included in the TSM’s are Complaints Perfomance Indicators, the table below 

shows the 2024/25 Performance information (note definitions are compliant with 

the Regulator of Social Housing Tenant Satisfaction Measures).  

Page 16



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

6 
 

 

Performance Indicator 
2024/25 

Performanc
e 

CH01 
Number of: Stage 1 complaints received per 
1,000 homes 

11.5 

CH01 
Number of: Stage 2 complaints received per 
1,000 homes  

3.4 

CH02 
Proportion of: 
Stage 1 complaints responded to within the 
Housing Ombudsman’s Complaint Handling 
Code timescales 

100% 

CH02 
Proportion of: 
Stage 2 complaints responded to within the 
Housing Ombudsman’s Complaint Handling 
Code timescales 

92.3% 

 

The effective handling of complaints satisfaction is published as part of the 

Tenant Satisfaction Measures (TSM) perception survey – Effective Handling of 

Complaints. 

(The full TSM’s results can be viewed on Rykneld Homes Limited’s website).     

Learning and Service Improvements 
 

Learning from complaints ensures mistakes are not repeated. 

Each complaint received is treated as an opportunity for us to learn and to 

improve our services. RHL has taken actions as a result of learning from 

complaints received in 2024/25, which include the following:  

 

Provided extra training to staff and issued instructions to contractors to 
provide more information prior to intrusive works. 

Increased the information provided at sign up to cover garden and fencing 
responsibilities. 

Amended RHL’s procedures to ensure battery alarms are fitted during any 
works that require the removal/disconnection of a hardwired alarm where it is 
the only one located within the property. 

Page 17

https://www.rykneldhomes.org.uk/corporate/tenant-satisfaction-measures/


OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

7 
 

Improved the Anti-Social Behaviour Policy to make clear reasonable 
adjustments to support individuals are considered during service delivery. 

Provided staff training to reinforce the requirements of the Lettable 
Standard. 
 

Transferred the drainage works from contractors to an in-house team to 
improve continuity of service delivery. 

Started a review of the scaffolding contract to include improved performance 
requirements to meet customer expectations. 

 

The complaint outcomes are fed back to the service area involved with any 

learning points provided in order to establish best practice and a ‘get it right first 

time’ approach. 

On behalf of the Council RHL’s Complaints Team review the commonalities and 
trends within complaints to consider improvements that can be made to policy, 
procedures and the services we provide to our tenants. Learning outcomes are 
discussed in monthly meetings with service managers. 

Equality and Diversity 
 

An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is a tool that helps us to place equality, 

diversity, cohesion and integration at the heart of everything we do and make 

sure our strategies, policies, services and functions do what they are intended to 

do and work for everyone. 

RHL ensures the complaints policy and processes are accessible to all. Equality 

Impact Assessment’s (EIA’s) are completed for all complaints recieved to 

minimise risk. 

Internal Audit 
 

Internal Audit’s evaluate the effectiveness of risk management, control, and 

governance processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing 

standards or guidance. 

An internal audit of Complaints was undertaken in November 2024 with an outcome 
of: 

 Substantial Assurance (There is a sound system of controls in place, 
designed to achieve the system objectives. Controls are being consistently 
applied and risks well managed.)  

Page 18



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

8 
 

The audit covered the policies / procedures and effectiveness of complaints handling 

and monitoring, as per the Regulator of Social Housing and Housing Ombudsman 

Service requirements. 

Reporting Procedures 
 

The Complaint Performance and Service Improvement Report for Housing will be 

completed on an annual basis and published on the Council’s website once 

agreed by Cabinet, which is the Council’s main decision making body.  

Annual complaints performance will be included in RHL Customer Annual Report 

and published on the RHL’s website. Customer satisfaction with complaints 

handling will be publicised with the TSM’s. 

Performance regarding complaints that are referred to the Housing Ombudsman 

are published on the Housing Ombudsman website. RHL’s compliance with the 

Housing Ombudsman Complaint Handling Code will be published on their 

website. 

RHL’s performance, code compliance and learning will be reviewed by RHL’s 

Operational Board and the Council’s Housing Client Team and Member 

Responsible for Housing Complaints (Leader of the Council & Portfolio Holder for 

Strategic Leadership & Finance).  

Rykneld Homes report key peformance data to the Council on a quarterly basis 

through the Council’s Key Peformance Indicators (KPI’S). 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 19

https://www.ne-derbyshire.gov.uk/housing-and-health/council-tenants-rykneld-homes


OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

9 
 

Appendix 1 
 

Breakdown of Complaint by Service Area and Theme.  

Service Area Complaint Theme Upheld 
Not 

Upheld 
TOTALS 

Adaptations 

Customers reported the length of time it taken to 
resolve the issues in their bathroom which they 
stated had also affected other rooms within their 
home and  were seeking compensation on this 
basis. 

1   

  Total 1 0 1 

ASB 

Customer disputed the details provided on a 
reference provided to SYHA, following which they 
were denied access to the housing register. 

 1 
 

Customer reported what they felt was a failure to 
act on reported antisocial behaviour.  1 

  Total 0 2 2 

Choice Move 

Customer was unhappy with review of their 
housing application and felt that they had been 
treated unfairly. 

 1 
 

Customer reported a lack of/miscommunication 
about the best course of action for her daughter in 
terms of her housing situation. 

 1 

  Total 0 2 2 

Customer 
Services 

Customer unhappy with the lack of 
communication from the staff who booked in 
appointments for repairs to their home. 

1   

  Total 1 0 1 

Damp 

Customer reported ongoing damp problem due to 
lack of maintenance. 1  

 

Customer reported ongoing damp and mould, 
stating nothing had been done for 6 months 
following them reporting this. 

1  

Customer reported ongoing damp and mould 
within their home which they stated has been 
ongoing for the last two years.  

1  

Customer reported ongoing issues (since 
September 2023) with mould, causing damage to 
clothing and other personal items for which 
compensation was requested. 

1  

Customer made a request for financial assistance 
towards new flooring following issues with damp. 1  

Customer advised they wished to complain about 
the length of time taken to do specialist damp 
works within their home. 

1  

Customer reported recurring Damp and Mould 
within their home causing damage to personal 
items. 

 1 

Customer stated that damp works should have 
been completed at void stage, prior to her moving 
in, as the issue was present at time of viewing 
and sign up.  

1  

Customer reported damp and Mould issues and 
that damp from next door was affecting their 
home. 

1  

Page 20



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

10 
 

Service Area Complaint Theme Upheld 
Not 

Upheld 
TOTALS 

Customer reported ongoing Issues with Damp 
and Mould/Drainage. 

1  

Customer stated that they terminated their 
tenancy as a result of damp and mould which 
they felt had remained unresolved. Also reported 
this caused permanent damage to their personal 
items which they requested compensation for. 

1  

Customer reported damp and mould causing 
damage to personal belongings.  Customer 
reported multiple times since moving in to the 
property re the radiators not working properly, 
specifically in the bedrooms and this ongoing 
issue the customer feels has been a major 
contributing factor to the mould.  

 1 

Customer reported that there had been damp and 
Mould in son’s bedroom on two occasions and 
wanted to make a complaint about the length of 
time taken to clean and treat this. 

1  

Customer requested compensation to replace 
items mould damaged items or alternatively have 
them professionally cleaned. 

1  

  Total 12 2 14 

Electrical 

Customer wanted to complain about the quality 
and appearance of electrical works carried out by 
contractor, inclusive of their communication in 
relation to this matter. 

1   

  Total 1 0 1 

Gas and 
Plumbing 

Customers reported and unresolved drainage 
issue that had causes faeces to come up through 
the toilet and kitchen sink and that the issue with 
the overflowing toilet had impacted their hall 
carpet.   

1  

 

Customer was requesting compensation for items 
which they stated were damaged following a leak 
through the living room ceiling. 

1  

  Total 2 0 2 

Home 
Ownership / 
Leasehold 

Leaseholder wished to dispute the payment for 
balcony works undertaken to their home in 
2022/2023 

 1 
 

Leaseholder wished to stop planned works to 
their outbuilding as they were disputing the cost.  

 1 

  Total 0 2 2 

Housing and 
Support 

Owner occupier requested that RHL help with the 
cost of having to replace their fence which was 
damaged by a tenants dog in a neighbouring 
NEDDC property. 

 1 

 
Customer stated that a rat infestation and issues 
with neighbour that remained unresolved 1  

Customer reported a lack of/conflicting 
communication they had been given over the last 
6 months in relation to her fence.   

1  

Customer wished to complain regarding the 
handling of ASB and noise nuisance in the 
Danesmoor area 

 1 

Page 21



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

11 
 

Service Area Complaint Theme Upheld 
Not 

Upheld 
TOTALS 

Customer wished to complain about how RHL 
handled the situation between them and their 
neighbour.  

 1 

Customer stated that due to their request to move 
being refused they had been treated unfairly.  1 

  Total 2 4 6 

Multiple 
Service 
Areas 

Customers stated that there were multiple repairs 
outstanding and that there had been a lack of 
communication from RHL.  

1 1 

 

Also, ongoing ASB from occupants below. 
Customers stated that one from Rykneld Homes 
has helped them resolve the issues and no one 
has ever provided them with an outcome or 
answer to their concerns which has caused them 
anxiety and distress 

1  

Customer requested compensation for the 
disruption to them due to the repair issues they 
had experienced since moving in. 

1  

Customer complained about various issues and 
RHL’s handling of these inclusive of repairs, 
tenancy management and ASB. 

1  

Customer stated staff had told them to remove 
fencing and shrubs for which they stated that they 
had initially been given permission for. Secondly 
that they felt they had not being believed in 
relation to their repair and adaptation concerns 
and that prior visits to their address had been 
ineffective. 

 1 

Customer reported stress caused to them in 
relation to the handling of their reports of noise 
concerns and in relation to the handling of their 
housing application. 

 1 

Customer reported that an electrician did not turn 
up to a pre-planned appointment. Issue with 
window handles recently fitted not matching the 
other windows in the property. Mould in bedroom 
and around bedroom window.  

1  

Customer stated that they were misled at the time 
of viewing a property due to being given 
inaccurate information. Following moving in they 
advised that they had also reported repairs many 
times which had remained outstanding.  

1  

Customer stated that mould has returned in the 
kitchen cupboard despite anti-mould treatment 
being used.  There was still work outstanding in 
the living room to block up the vent. There was 
also a hole in the pathway at the front of the main 
doorway, which was a trip hazard.  

1  

Customer reported an unidentified humming 
noise in their flat which they wanted RHL to 
resolve. 

 1 

Customer complained of leaks from the boiler and 
the leak from the bathroom through to the kitchen.  
Advised they were dissatisfied with RHLs lack of 
action for the duration they have has lived at the 
property. Dissatisfaction with the condition of the 

1  

Page 22



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

12 
 

Service Area Complaint Theme Upheld 
Not 

Upheld 
TOTALS 

kitchen which they stated was in a poor state of 
repair. 
Customer reported numerous outstanding repairs/ 
damp issues. 

1  

Repair works included under previous formal 
complaint (78918 FC/25/013) were not 
completed.  Reported damp and mould issues, 
mainly situated on external walls, to every window 
frame, main bedroom.  Fence railing not fitted 
correctly and a rotten kitchen cupboard.   

1  

  Total 10 4 14 

Regeneration 

Complaint also concerned several incidents with 
SBS/ Nationwide including an old window falling 
and causing damage to the complainants garden 
furniture. 

1  

 

Complaint concerned a lack of communication 
from contractors and RHL regarding the new 
window installation.  Also, a number of historical 
issues, including the bathroom install by a 
contractor last year and the issues which 
surrounded this.   

1  

Complaint related to a member of staff for the 
nature of a letter sent to their mother. 
Complainant advised that the letter should not 
have been sent to mother, but to him as he has 
authority to act on mother’s behalf.   

1  

Customer reported ongoing issues with bathroom 
with and with leaking walls. Also, a path was 
agreed to be re-done by a contractor but works 
had not yet been undertaken. 

1  

Customer reported that a bathroom replacement 
should have gone on programme following an 
appraisal completed in February 2024 but that 
they had heard nothing further.  

1  

Customer reported that the actions of a contractor 
had contributed to damp and mould within their 
home due to them not returning the loft insulation 
to its original position. 

1  

Customer reported work had been delayed at 
their home to drop the chimney and this was due 
to issues with the scaffold required to complete 
the works. 

1  

  Total 7 0 7 

Rents 

Customer stated they had not receiving their rent 
increase letter for the second year running and 
stated that they felt this was intentional. 

 1 

 Customer reported that a Notice of Seeking 
Possession letter was sent to their daughter even 
though she was adhering to the payment 
agreement, resulting in undue stress. 

 1 

  Total 0 2 2 

 
Customer reported ongoing drainage issues on 
the back garden which remained unresolved. 1   

Page 23



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

13 
 

Service Area Complaint Theme Upheld 
Not 

Upheld 
TOTALS 

 
 
 
Repairs 

Customer reported that they were dissatisfied that 
they had reported their soffits/fascia’s required 
replacement in 2021 but had been advised they 
would have to wait another 3 years before these 
were completed on program. 

1  

Customer reported that there were 
outstanding/planned works in her garden which 
had not yet been completed following flooding. 

1  

Customer reported an incomplete repair which 
had first been reported July 2023 and that there 
had been a lack of communication from RHL staff 
on this matter. 

1  

Customer reported water was entering the 
property into the hallway where the front door is 
located. Multiple repairs had taken place but the 
issue had persisted. 

1  

Customer reported poor service and repairs to 
property and the lack of communication between 
employees with nothing being followed through 
causing them to be frustrated. 

1  

Customer reported a scaffold had been up at the 
property for 5 months without work being carried 
out.  Conservationist had been carrying out 
investigation due to bats which has withheld work 
but there had been a lack of updates from RHL re 
this matter. 

1  

Customer reported that they did not feel the 
recent repairs done to their driveway were 
sufficient. 

 1 

Customer reported outstanding repairs to their 
outbuilding roof which was leaking.  

1  

Customer wished to complain about RHL’s 
communication around works to undertake loft 
insulation and to replace their kitchen and dining 
room doors.   

1  

Customer stated that after a cupboard unit falling 
in January 2024, damaging a number of items in 
the kitchen and a visit being undertaken to 
complete an incident form and assess the items 
damaged, they had not heard anything further 
about the compensation they had requested.   

1  

Customer reported that they were waiting for 
repairs to be done which had been marked as 
completed. 

1  

Customer stated she had reported her chimney 6 
months ago but this had remained unresolved, 
despite calling in.  

1  

Tenant stated she had fitted a storm door in the 
past and it has now reached a state of disrepair 
and wished to complain that we would not replace 
this. 

 1 

Customer reported outstanding repairs to the 
rendering/plaster to outside of their home which 
remained unresolved. 

1  

Customer stated that since moving in they had 
phoned RHL multiple times regarding the roof 
between the back door and shed to advise that 

1  

Page 24



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

14 
 

Service Area Complaint Theme Upheld 
Not 

Upheld 
TOTALS 

water is leaking through without a repair being 
completed.  

Customer reported poor workmanship and 
outstanding repairs to their home. 

1  

Customer advised they had reported pointing 
required to house but despite multiple contacts no 
repairs had been completed. 

1  

Customer reported a lack of communication in 
regard to the repairs progress following a fire at 
their home. 

1  

Customer reported a lack of communication in 
receiving confirmation of works or an appointment 
following a bathroom fan installation. 

1  

Customer reported that they had been told that no 
repairs will be carried out to their porch. 

1  

Also, the length of time taken to get repairs done 
to their kitchen and living room wall. 

1  

Customer stated hallway had been cold despite 
the rest of the house heating as normal and had 
requested compensation due to escalated heating 
bills 

 1 

Customer reported concerns that the communal 
front door was faulty and this had been reported 
multiple times. 

 1 

Customer reported outstanding repairs to their 
rear garden. 

 1 

Customer reported that flat does not warm up and 
attributed this to a window replacement being 
required. Asked for compensation towards 
heating costs. 

 1 

Customer stated they have reported repairs 
required to their windows numerous times 
however, repairs have not been adequate due to 
their age and felt required a full window 
replacement. 

1  

Customer reported issues with their floorboards 
which they stated had caused damage to their 
carpets. 

1  

Customer reported that the bathroom had a 
significant leak for the last 18 months and despite 
numerous visits from RHL staff the situation had 
deteriorated. 

1  

Customer reported their contacts to RHL 
regarding the condition of soffits and facias had 
been ignored. 

1  

Customer stated that they had fell through one of 
the floor boards. 

1  

Customer advised they wanted a formal 
investigation into why Operatives are carding 
works when customers are clearly present. Also 
was dissatisfied with the quality of the joinery 
works to the front door. 

1  

Customer advised there had been number of 
repair issues identified upon moving in to the 
property and that works undertaken by the 
Contractor to that stage had been poor. 
Compensation requested towards heating costs. 

1  

Page 25



OFFICIAL-[SENSITIVE] 

15 
 

Service Area Complaint Theme Upheld 
Not 

Upheld 
TOTALS 

Customer reported outstanding repairs to their 
outhouse which remained unresolved. 

1  

Customer reported work not being carried out to a 
leak to the roof near the chimney and that this 
had caused damp in both main bedrooms. 

1  

Customer reported the condition of fencing at the 
property which they felt had not been properly 
addressed. Also reported they thought there was 
subsidence in garden and multiple cracks 
internally and externally within their home which 
had not been addressed. 

1  

Customer reported a lack of communication from 
Contractors who replaced doors in communal 
area and this had led to stress and anxiety. 

1  

Customer reported an outstanding chimney repair 
which they felt could have been resolved more 
quickly with better liaison and communication.  

1  

  Total 32 6 38 

Voids 
Customer reported repair issues identified from 
moving in which had not been resolved. 1   

  Total 1 0 1 

Total Formal Complaints 60 24 93 

 

Page 26



STANDARDS COMMITTEE 2025/26 – WORK PROGRAMME 

 

Date  Agenda items 

10 December 
2025 
 

 Annual Complaint Performance and Service 
Improvement Report for Housing 

 Government response to consultation on strengthening 
the standards and conduct framework for local 
authorities in England 

 Request for Dispensation 

 Review of the Constitution  
 

25 February 
2026 
 

 Good Practice Guidance on Member-Officer Relations 
Protocol 

 RIPA Policy Annual Report 

 Whistleblowing Policy Annual Report 

 Gifts and Hospitality Annual Report 

 Review of the Constitution  
 

29 April 2026  Review of Members’ Attendance at Training Events 
 
 

  

 

Page 27

Agenda Item 9


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Last Meeting
	4 Complaints Performance and Service Improvement Report for Housing
	Complaint Performance and Service Improvement Report

	9 Work Programme

